## Mulberry Street (German) Evangelical Lutheran Church

## Items Related to Church history

From the Archives at: Krauth Memorial Library Lutheran Theological Seminary, 7301 Germantown Ave Philadelphia, PA 19119

The following pages contain miscellaneous items stored with the actual Church Books of the Mulberry Street Church of Newark, NJ. The first two pages are a summary of the contents of the two major of three boxes of church books. The remainder is historical items related to the history of the church. The items should be self-explanatory but I have no knowledge of their provenance, or for most part, their authorship.

Photographed by: Peter Hasselbacher Louisville, KY Feb, 2008

## MULBERRY STREET EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH

### 60 Mulberry Street

Newark, Essex Co., New Jersey

Inventory of Church Books

Location: Krauth Memorial Library, Lutheran Theological Seminary

7301 Germantown Avenue, Philadelphia PA 19119

### BOX 1:

Booki

3.6

Book 2

Book

Book 4

1500

Marriages: 1859 - 1866 pages 1 - 134

Baptisms: 1859 - 1866 pages 135 - 418

Burials: 1866 page 419

Marriages: 1866 pages 420 - 435

Burials: 1866/1865/1859 1860-1864 pages 436 - 568

Marriages: 1873 - 1883 pages 1 -274 (Volume 5)

Book 3 Marriages: 1866 - 1873 pages 3 - 256

Baptisms: 31 Jan 1847 - Mar 1848 no # -

Marriages: 28 July 1847 - Dec 1850 No # - page 16

Baptisms: 1848 - June 1853 pages 17 - 79

Marriages: 1850 - May 1853 pages 80 - 118

Burials: 1850 - 1853 pages 119 - 144

### BOX 1 continued:

Book 5 | Marriages: May 1853 - Aug 1858 | pages 7 - 115

Baptisms: June 1853 - Feb 1859 pages 116 - 299

Burials: Dec 1853 - Jul 1859 pages 300 - 371

Marriages: Sept 1858 - Jul 1859 pages 372 - 386

Baptisms: Mar 1859 - Jul 1859 pages 388 - 402

```
Box 2:

Box 2:

Buria 3: Jan 1878 - Nov 1900
                                          pages 1 - 363
                                          pages 1 - 141
               1900 - 1945
Book Burials:
Baptisms: 1901 - 1946
                                           pages 3 - 107
Book Confirmations: 19th century (various years) 1867-1942 pp 1-80
300/ Church Minutes: 1847 - 1864
                                            pages 3 - 318
                Dec 1866 - Apr 1872
      Baptisms:
```

Baptisms: May 1872 - Dec 1884 pages 3 - 421

## NEW JERSEY REFERENCE NEWARK LIBRARY

German Evangelical Church, located on Mulberry Street from 1844, combined with another group to Street from 1844, combined with another group to form Roseville Evangelical Church, which was located on 5th Street following 1913. This church subsequently became Bethesda-Roseville Lutheran Church (1961) and as Newark Lutheran Mission was merged some time after 1970 into Holy Trinity Lutheran Church of East Orange and Newark.

Records of German Evangelical Church have been sent from the church through the synod office to the Lutheran archives. Questions about the records should be directed to the archives at:

Lutheran Theological Seminary at Philadelphia 7301 Germantown Avenue Philadelphia 19119

## Sources:

Sunday Call Oct. 15, 1944 Newspaper article
News Aug. 25, 1962 and Feb. 28, 1970 - Newspaper articles
Holy Trinity Oct. 1981 - see above

The Reformed Church Historical directory-(285 R253, p. 283) and Wignhark (vol. 2, p. 1013) indicate that this was Third Reformed Church early in its history.

Newark Public Library Newark, New Jersey

## DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE

Following are the name changes of the DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE from the years 1844-1981, its pastors' names and their years of service, compiled by Dorothy Wratten:

- DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE

  {German Evangelical Church}

  This was a small chapel, organized by German immigrants on Mulberry Street, Newark, New Jersey. REFERENCE: "Roseville Church Centennial Today" Sunday Call, newspaper, 15 Oct. 1944
- 1 Feb. 1847: GERMAN EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH
  60 Mulberry Street, south of East Park, Newark, N. J.,
  was organized in what was known as Temperance Hall
  and later transformed into the present church
  auditorium.\* {This hall formerly had been the
  Primitive Methodist Church.} (\* Need publishing date.)

John David Rose, pastor, 17 Feb. 1847-03 Jul. 1848 J. M. Serenbetz, pastor, 03 Jul. 1848-23 Oct. 1849 Frederick A. Lehlbach, pastor, 22 Nov.1849-03 Sep. 1875 (died September 11th.)

(Lorenzo Dow, the eccentric itinerant preacher, used to visit and preach.)
The church had a burying ground, in which there are still a few stones.\*\* Used as a paving stone is the marble stone tablet of the Primitive Church dated 1832. The German Evangelical Church rebuilt the edifice (church building) in 1869. (\*\*Need publishing date)
REFERENCE: "History of Newark", page 1013-1014, by Urquhart. (Need publishing date)
THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES
(Page 1013, 1st paragraph--The German

Evangelical Church, 60 Mulberry St. ----)

- 1848: Newark, N. J. Third. Organized 1848; became indep.
  1861; then Lutheran Pastor Francis M. Serenbetz, 1848-49;
  1850: Frederick A. Lebbach, 1850.61
- 1850: Frederick A. Lehlbach, 1850-61.
  REFERENCE: "Reformed Church in America Historical
  Directory", page 283 CHURCHES
- 1860: 1st GERMAN REFORMED DUTCH CHURCH
  43 Mulberry Street, Newark, New Jersey
  F. A. Lehlbach, pastor
  REFERENCE: 1860 City Directory of Newark, N. J.,
  page 74
  - 1860: Frederick A. Lehlbach, pastor
    22 Nov. 1849 3 Sep. 1875, died Sep. 11
    REFERENCE: "History of Newark" by Urquhart, page 1013.
    THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES
    (1st paragraph)

## DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE, continued:

1905-

1869: GERMAN EVANGELICAL CHURCH rebuilt the edifice.

(The church originally used the German spelling--DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE.)

"History of Newark" by Urquhart, page 1013. REFERENCE:

THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES (1st paragraph)

George Schambach, pastor, 10 Oct. 1875-1903 1875-1903:

REFERENCE: "History of Newark" by Urquhart, page 1013.

THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES (1st paragraph)

F. E. C. Haas, pastor, 1903-1905 1903-1905:

REFERENCE: "History of Newark" by Urquhart, page 1013. THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES (1st paragraph)

William L. Siebert, pastor, (still pastor in 1944)

REFERENCE: "History of Newark" by Urquhart, page 1013. THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES (1st paragraph)

REFERENCE: "Roseville Church Centennial Today",

Sunday Call, newspaper, Newark, N. J., dated 15 October 1944.

GERMAN EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH 1913:

> The church under this name and the SECOND GERMAN PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH on Sussex Ave. joined forces.

Ground was broken for the new edifice, but the 1914: war interfered. The new church building was eventually built and renamed:

> ROSEVILLE EVANGELICAL CHURCH, and located at 87th Fifth Street, Newark, New Jersey. William L. Siebert, pastor

REFERENCE: "Roseville Church Centennial Today", Sunday Call, newspaper, Newark, N. J., dated 15 October 1944.

1944: ROSEVILLE EVANGELICAL CHURCH, formerly, the DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE celebrates its 100th Anniversary.

REFERENCE: "Roseville Church Centennial Today", Sunday Call, newspaper, Newark, N. J., dated 15 October 1944.

Early, 1961: BETHESDA-ROSEVILLE LUTHERAN CHURCH 95 N. 5th Street, Newark, New Jersey

BETHESDA-ROSEVILLE was the result of a merger completed early of 1961 of BETHESDA, which was a church of the former Evangelical Lutheran denomination and ROSEVILLE, a parish of the former United Lutheran Church in America. Both denominations merged last June with the former Augustana and Finnish Evangelical (Suomi Synod) Churches in America, the largest Lutheran body in America. It is an integrated church which is

\* Bethesda belonged to AFLC syrod, Not the ELC syrod.

DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE, continued:

trying to minister to its neighborhood community.

REFERENCE: "Begins Pastorate At City Church",

Newark Evening News, newspaper, dated

25 August 1962.

Sep. 1962: Rev. Donald Moeser, pastor installed by Rev. Dr. Edwin H. Knudten, president of the New Jersey Synod of the Lutheran Church in America.

REFERENCE: "Begins Pastorate At City Church", Newark Evening News, newspaper, dated

25 August 1962.

28 Feb. 1970 / NEWAR

NEWARK LUTHERAN MISSION
95 North 5th Street, Newark, New Jersey
As of this date, a new thrust in church ministry
for Newark and East Orange has been launched by
the New Jersey Lutheran Synod, through the Board
of American Missions of the Lutheran Church in
America.

BETHESDA-ROSEVILLE LUTHERAN CHURCH, 95 North 5th Street, Newark, will become the NEWARK LUTHERAN MISSION, thereby enlarging its outreach into the community. Sunday church school and church worship will be continued, as will the Luther League and youth activities and the pre-school and tutorial programs.

Rev. Ortres Levesta Nunnally, a black minister, has been appointed to head this two-fold ministry. Rev. Nunally has been a youth urban developer of summer programs for the synod for six years.

REFERENCE: "City Church Lists Community Plans",
Newark News, newspaper, dated, Saturday,
February 28, 1970

Oct. 1981: HOLY TRINITY CHURCH

Robert Blackwell, staff member, of the Newark Public Library, Newark, New Jersey, did extensive research in 1981 on the history, name changes, and pastors who served the DEUTSCHE EVANGELISCHE KIRCHE. In 1981, Mr. Blackwell phoned the HOLY TRINITY CHURCH to follow up on an indication that the BETHESDA-ROSEVILLE CHURCH had joined with the HOLY TRINITY CHURCH. HOLY TRINITY CHURCH provided Mr. Blackwell with data that the old records were at the following LUTHERAN ARCHIVES:

Lutheran Theological Seminary 7301 Germantown Avenue Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19119

the Newerk Luther on Mission took over the old Roseville church building, but was not a continuation of the Bethesda-Roseville Lutheran Church.





## **Reformed Church in America**

## Office of Historical Services

Russell L. Gasero, Archivist (732) 246-1779 21 Seminary Place, New Brunswick, NJ 08901 FAX: (732) 249-5412 Email: rgasero@aol.com

29 October 1998

Mrs. William F. Wratten 1610 North Pine Avenue Arlington Heights, IL 60004-3927

Dear Mrs. Wratten:

This is in response to your letter of 8 October. The following is the entry for the church you are seeking in our *Historical Directory*:

Newark, NJ — Third. Org. 1848; became indep, 1861, then Luth; pas, Francis M. Serenbetz, 1848-49; Fred A. Lehbach, 1850-61.

The last information we have is that the congregation become a Lutheran church. There are no records for this congregation in the Reformed Church in America Archives. Rev. Lehlbach was suspended from the ministry at that time.

The main office of archives of the Lutheran church are located at their headquarters in Chicago. I suspect they would be able to point you in the right direction to find the records if it remained a Lutheran church. If I can assist in any other way, please let me know.

Sincerely,

Russell L. Gasero

Office of the Secretary

May 12, 2000

Mrs. William F. Wratten 1610 North Pine Ave. Arlington Heights, IL 60004-3927

Dear Mrs. Wratten:

I am writing in response to your letter to Kim Butler of May 3. Kim is no longer working here at the archives, but hopefully I can be of some assistance in answering your questions.

Thank you for all of the information on Bethesda-Roseville Lutheran Church and its antecedent bodies. We do have the record books here for the Bethesda Lutheran Church, but not for Roseville. These were probably kept at the church after the merger. Bethesda was a member of the American Evangelical Lutheran Church, which had been the Danish Evangelical Lutheran Church. The Newark Evening News articles of August 25, 1962 mistakenly calls the synod the "Evangelical Lutheran denomination." The Bethesda books were sent in to the old AELC office when the Bethesda-Roseville merger took place.

Bethesda-Roseville dissolved on December 21, 1969. At that time the records should have been sent to the Lutheran Archives Center at Philadelphia, whose address you have. They may not have the records for the church prior to its joining the United Lutheran Church in America. The Newark Lutheran Mission took over the old Roseville building, but was not a continuation of the congregation.

While Pastors Lehlbach and Haas were not listed on the Lutheran clergy roster, Pastors G. Schambach and W.L. Siebert were. Rev. Schambach was a member of the General Council's New York and New Jersey Synod, while Rev. Siebert was a member of the General Council's Ministerium of New York. Although the pastors were synod members, the congregation remained independent.

Please let me know if you have any further questions.

Sincerely,

Joel Thoreson Asst. Archivist

phone: (847) 690-9410

## Roseville Church Centennial Today

Roseville Evangelical Church will start the celebration of its 100th anstart the celebration of its 100th anniversary today with a worship
service at 10 A M. in the church
hall, 87 Fifth street. Newark, Rev.
Oscar E. Braune will speak. The I
anniversary dinner will be Wednesday at 6.30 P. M. in the Irvington I
Elks Club. The commemoration will be enholuded at worship served

ice-next-Sunday, when Rev. William L. Siebert, pastor, will review

The church was formerly the Deutsche Evangelische Kirche, founded by a group of German's immigrants in a small chapel on Mulberry street in 1844. German, was the language spoken in both church and Sunday school. In later

years the ciders noted that the younger generation drifted to churches in which services were spoken in English.

The present pastor instituted services in English in 1905. Four of the 28 in his first confirmation Class Weren conthrond -- tres Brighste The changeover helped attendance; but many of the older German families were moving from the district

and it was decided to seek a new site. In 1913, members of the German Eyangelical Lutheran Church and a group from the Second German Presbyterian Church on Sussex avenue joined forces and built the present edifice. Ground was broken in 1914, but the war interfered with the original plans. The present building, redecorated for the analvorstry, includes Sunday school rooms, recreation rooms and the

church proper. There are six active organizations in the church today. They include the board of trustees, the Ladies' the board of trustees, the Ladies Ald, the Endies Auxiliary, the Sunday school, the Ladies Auxiliary and the choir. A men's Bible class formed in 1933 has suspended inferings temporarity. The Junior All Ladies Publishes "The Boomerang." which keeps members in service

informed on church activities



MISSION Maryknoll Sister Dominic Rosafre shows slides of her work in chool to her mother, Mrs. Henry Chaffield, 37 Francis Pl., Caldwell. Sis-Rosaire who spent two weeks visiting her mother and other members of left yesterday for Maui Island, where she teaches science in St. Anthony's only Catholic high school on the island. She has served six years in where 150 Maryknoll nuns are engaged in social and educational work.

## yknoll Missionary Tells Vork Among Hawaiians

the Hawaran Nister Dominic Robarte stated for the said specific stated for the stated for the said specific specif

Henry Chat New Accide

## Begins Pastorate At City Church

Mr. Moeser was graduated in Lutheran Church. Huntington.

Formed by Merger 1958 from Marshall University, Huntington and earlier this year

## List Events In Suburbs

Observances Planned by Churches for Tomorrow.

Rev. Clarence L. Lecrone will speak tomorrow at 10 a.m. in Bethel Presbyterian Church, East Orange. He is pastor of Ogden Memorial Presbyterian Church, Chatham, and also vice moderator of the United Presbyterian Synod of New Jersey. Kenneth Scovell of Edison will be vocal soloist.

CE Officer

Rèv. Alexander C. Wilson, secretary, New Jersey Christian Endeavor Society, will preach at Bethany United Presbyterian Church, Bloomfield, tomorrow at 10 a.m.

Walther Societies are attending largest Lutheran body in America. the New Jersey District Walther. The new congregation of the League Convention at Upsala Col. Newark church is participating

Speaking of her students Japanese Philippino and Hawai munion Episcopal churches, South mer Vicki Staker of Wheelersdrew's Church, Center St. and 6th St. Hawanan boys and girls are Sept. 2 Sept. 2 tomorrow and

Rev: Donald H. Moeser, a na- from the Lutheran Theological tive of Huntington, W.Va., has as- Seminary, Gettysburg, Pa. He sumed his first pastorate at Beth- also has completed his residence esda-Roseville Lutheran Church, requirements for his master's de-95 N. 5th St. He will be formally gree in sociology-social work at installed as pastor in September West Virgiia University and this by Rev. Dr. Edwin H. Knudten, summer received pastoral clinical president of the New Jersey Synod of the Lutheran Church in Amer-Hospital, Chicago, He was ordained last June 2 in St. Paul's

> The Newark church is the result of a merger completed early last year of Bethesda, which was a church of the former Evangelical Lutheran denomination, and



REV? DONALD MOESER New Pastor in City .

Rosevile, a parish of the former At St. John's Lutheran Church, ica. Both denominations merged Bloomfield, Holy Communion will last June with the former Augusbe observed tomorrow at 9 a.m. tana and Finnish Evangelical Approximately 16 members of (Suomi Synod) churches to form the church's senior and junior the Lutheran Church in America,

CERRATO fold the development of science have the discipline we have the discipline we have the discipline we have the discipline we have the form of speak the turn and one of the workshops on the control of the contr and nut who is from both private and public is a combination of simple words. The final joint summer services first fulltime paster of the parish, others taken from Chinese of St. Andrew and Holy Com. Mr. and Mrs. Moeser, the foris a commission of St. Andrew and Holy Com. Mr. and Mrs. Moeser, the for-

## K Churches Est City Church Lists LE REFERENCE N. J. Community Rians

istry for Newark and East Or-ciation. in America.

Church, 95 N. 5th St., Newark, will become the Newark Lutheran Mission, thereby enlarging its outreach into the community, Sunday church school and church worship will be continschool and tutorial programs.

### Many Aims

However the mission seeks to establish a day care center for and Neil Jaggie, Middlesex. working mothers, hot breakfast Mr. Nunnally has planned a program for needy children, series of special fellowship servfamily night, senior citizens ices to introduce his work in the club, citizen, merchant, firemen city. Pastors and members of and policemen relations pro the congregations of churches in grams. It also plans a summer which he previously, served will youth camp, youth council, job visit the Newark center, along placement assist, diet and sew-with members of their choirs. ing instruction for mothers and on a number of Sunday eveteens and scouting for boys and nings. Rev. Laurence Roberts, girls.

Volunteer groups will Youth House, the New Well, the first service tomorrow at welfare mothers, area hospitals, 8 p.m.

A new thrust in church min-|jail and Newark Planning Asso-

ange has been launched by the Rev. Ortres Levesta Nun-New Jersey Lutheran Synod, nally, a black minister, has been through the Board of American appointed to head this two-fold Missions of the Lutheran Church ministry, Mr. Nunnally has been youth urban developer of Bethesda-Roseville Lutheran summer programs for the synod for six years. He will make his C home at 20 Weeeuahic Ave. Newark. Staff of 9

He will be assisted by a staff including Mrs. Ruby Bridges, ued, as will the Luther League parish worker at the church, and youth activities and the pre- Miss. Ruth Guffy, secretary, Mrs. Hilda Daum, John Davion, Jack Wilson Jr., all of Newark; Mrs. James Garrett, Miss Deborah West, East Orange

> pastor of First Baptist Church, be Nutley and members of his conservice to Essex gregation and choir will be at

street; L. F. Warner, 1907-1909; William S. Phillips, 1909-1912 (death), and the present pastor, Rev. Eugene C. Makosky, who came in 1912. pastors of the Clinton Hill Church previous to the union were: William N. Sherwood, 1900-1901; C. M. Compher, 1901-1905, and J. M. Dickey, 1905-1906.

### THE REFORMED EPISCOPAL CHURCH.

The Emmanuel Reformed Episcopal Church, at the southeast corner of Broad street and Fourth avenue, was organized December 25, 1874, in Association Hall, on West Park street. In this hall, formerly the Park Presbyterian Church, and now, much remodelled, the library of the New Jersey Historical Society, the congregation worshipped until May 4, 1877, when its church edifice on the east side of Halsey street, near New, was opened. This church was of stone and brick. The cornerstone was laid on October 11, 1876. The site is now covered by the west end of the Hahne store. One of the dignitaries present at the laying of the cornerstone was Bishop William R. Nicholson, who from 1872 to 1874 had been rector of Trinity Protestant Episcopal Church of Newark. He had resigned from Trinity on ritualistic grounds, and had become a bishop of the Reformed Episcopal denomination, which at New York, on December 3, 1873, was formally organized. He died June 7, 1901. The Emmanuel congregation worshipped in the Halsey street edifice for nineteen years. The cornerstone of the present handsome church was laid July 22, 1895, and the first service was held April 26, 1896. The rectors have been: John Howard Smith, D. D., February 14, 1875, to October 1, 1884; E. B. England, D. D., November 16, 1884, to November 24, 1889; John Dennis, July 7, 1890, to January 1, 1893; George Savary, 1893-96; William D. Stevens, D. D., January 1, 1897, to January 1, 1907, and the present rector, Rev. Robert W. Peach, who took charge May 1, 1907.

## THE EVANGELICAL (GERMAN) CHURCHES.

The German Evangelical Lutheran Church, 60 Mulberry street, south of East Park, was organized February 1, 1847, in what was known as Temperance Hall and was later transformed into the present church auditorium. This hall formerly had been the Primitive Methodist Church. There Lorenzo Dow, the eccentric itinerant preacher, used to visit and preach. Behind the church is the old burying ground, in which there are still a few stones. Used as a paving stone is the marble stone tablet of the Primitive church The German Evangelical Church rebuilt the edifice in 1869. The pastors have been: John David Rose, February 17, 1847, to July 3, 1848; J. M. Serenbetz, July 3, 1848, to October 23, 1849; Frederick A. Lehlbach, November 22, 1849, to September 3, 1875 (died September 11); George Schambach, October 10, 1875, to 1903; F. E. C. Haas, 1903-1905, and the present pastor, Rev. William L. Siebert, who took charge in 1905.

St. Stephen's German United Evangelical Church, Ferry street and Hamburg place, was organized March 17, 1874. present substantial edifice was laid June 25, 1874, and the dedicating was accomplished in the following December. Most of the charter members had come from the Third German Presbyterian Church, led by Rev. O. Kraft, who had been pastor of that church. The pastors have been: Oscar Kraft, 1874-79; R. Katerndahl, 1879-97, and the present pastor, Rev. Edward Fuhr-

author: Wegahart

The First German Evangelical Church, at Avon avenue and South Seventeenth street, was organized in 1878. For many years the location was at 247 Court street. In 1907 an edifice was erected on the present site. It is a handsome and commodious brick structure. The reverend pastors have been: I. A. Blattenberger, 1879-82; J. F. Grob, 1882-83; Emanuel Glaeser, 1883-86; F. Egger, 1886-89; A. Pfost, 1889-92; F. Egger, 1892-95; J. A. Linder, 1895-98; J. P. Luippold, 1898-1901; C. C. Weber, 1901-1903; Robert J. Lau, 1903-1905; Theobald Weber, 1905-1907; Daniel Schnebel, 1907-1910, and the present pastor, Rev. John Reuber, who came in May, 1910.

The German United Evangelical Essex Park Church, Bragaw avenue, near Dewey street, was built in 1900. The organizer was the first pastor, Rev. William Frenzen, who remained until the spring of 1901. Other pastors have been: Henry Dahlhoff, from the spring of 1901 to 1908; Frederick Gabelman, 1908, to the fall of 1910, and the present pastor, Rev. C. F. Dies, who took charge in January, 1911.

The German United Evangelical Zion Church, Alexander street, near South Orange avenue, in the Vailsburg section, was founded in 1900. It was formerly regularly supplied by the same pastor who supplied the Essex Park Evangelical. The pastors have been: William Frenzen (founder), 1900-1901; Henry Dahlhoff, 1901-1908, and the present pastor, Rev. Frederick Gabelman, who took charge in the spring of 1908.

# MISCELLANEOUS METHODIST CHURCHES.

The Emanuel Methodist Episcopal Church (German), Clinton avenue and Hedden terrace, formerly at the northeast corner of Mulberry and Walnut streets, was organized in 1846. For a time services were held at 251 Market street. The first building was of wood. The second was of brick, erected in 1871, and abandoned in 1913, the church having decided upon a new site in a residential section. The present handsome church was built in 1913. The pastors have been: John Sauter, 1846-48; Thomas Steck and Thomas Pfusten, John Swablen, 1850; S. F. Zimmerman, 1852; C. H. Hauner, John Sauter, 1853-55; F. C. Gratz, William Schwartz, 1856-60; C. R. Afflerbach, 1860-62; J. Seidel, 1862-63; H. Kastendieck, 1864-67; C. Jost, 1868-69; J. W. Freund, 1870-74; P. Quattlander, 1874; H. Kastendieck, 1875-76; J. C. Deininger, 1879-80; J. W. Freund, 1881-83; George Aberle, 1884-87; Louis Wallon, 1887-92; Paul Quattlander, 1892-96; August Flamann, 1896-1902; John Lange, 1902-1903; W. H. Kurth, 1903-1908; D. H. Pape, 1903-1913, and the present pastor, Rev. John Mueller, who came in 1913, and is the first pastor of the new church, which has before it a great opportunity on Clinton Hill.

The Independent Methodist Church, formerly at Gould avenue and South Fourteenth street, was founded about 1901, by Rev. Charles F. Nettleship, who still is pastor. In 1912 a new church was built on Steuben street, near Ninth avenue, East Orange. This church represents a denomination incorporated by Mr. Nettleship, and there were for a time several met with success.

The Swedish M. E. Church is located at 165 South Tenth street; the

St. James' African M. E. Church, 90 Union street, worships in the edifice that formerly belonged to the Sixth Presbyterian Church. Rev. H. P. Anderson was the pastor in 1902. Rev. R. French Hurley was there in 1910.

claughlin -53; Fred ; Russell

attler Rd 3-57; SS t, 1962 -.

k). Org It Park.

20. Loc 920-22; geman,

Robert

Neperan - see Hawthorne, N.Y.

Neshaminy, Pa. - Neshaminy. Org 1710 in with North and South Hampton at Churchville. Loc Bucks Co near Feasterville. Pas P. Van Vleck, 1710-13; supplied Malachi Jones, 1714-19. Became Presby.

Neshanic, N.J. — Neshanic (Shannick, New Shannock). Org 1752. Loc Old Amwell Rd. Pas John Freling-Org 1752, Loc Old Alleren, Hardenbergh, 1758-61; huysen, 1752-54; Jacob R. Hardenbergh, 1758-61; Johannes M. Van Harlingen, 1762-95; Solomon Johannes M. Van Harlingen, 1762-95; Solomon Froeligh, 1780-86; William R. Smith, 1794-1820; Henry Polhemus, 1798-1808; Peter Labagh, 1809-21; Gabriel Ludlow, 1821-78; John Hart, 1875-1922; John J. Van Strien, 1922-26; George B. Scholten, 1926-56; Richard E. Detrich, 1957-61; Raymond Ortman, 1962-.

Nestegauna - see Schenectady, N.Y. - Niskayuna.

Netherwood - see Plainfield, N.J.

Neversink - see Holmdel, N.J.

Neversink - see Woodbourne, N.Y.

New Amstel, Del. - New Amstel (New Castle). Org 1642 as Swedish Ch; became Ref 1654. Pas John Campanius (Swedish), 1642-54; Everardus Welius, 1657-59; Peter Tesschenmaeker, 1679-82. Became Presby.

New Amsterdam - see New York, N.Y. - Collegiate.

New Amsterdam, Wis. Org 1877. Loc LaCrosse Co.

Newark, N.J. - First. Org 1833. Loc Lincoln Park and Halsey St; formerly Market St; then Clinton Ave and Johnson St. Pas Ransford Wells, 1834-42;
Ave and Johnson St. Pas Ransford Wells, 1834-42; James Scott, 1843-58; Edward Payson James Scott, 1843-58; Edward Payson Terhune, 1859-76; William H. Gleason, 1877-86; Thomas C. Easton, 1886-89; Carlos Martyn, 1890-92; Timothy I. Lee, 1893-1905; Stuart Nye Hutchinson, 1906-09; Arthur M. Trousdale, 1911-24; C. Arthur Lincoln, 1924-26; Philip H. Clifford, 1926-29; Oliver M. Fletcher, 1931-38; Robert Beach Cunningham, 1940-43; William P. Green, 1949-53; William T. Iverson, 1957-84

Newark, N.J. - Second (New York Avenue). Org 1848. Loc Ferry St until 1890; then New York Ave. N.J. - Second (New York Avenue). Org Pas George R. Williamson, 1848-49; Gustavus Abeel, Pas George R. Williamson, 1848-49; Gustavus Abeet, 1850-65; Matthew B. Riddle, 1865-69; Cornelius Brett, 1870-73; Francis V. van Vranken, 1874-82; John A. Davis, 1883-89; Andrew Jackson Sullivan, 1890-91; John S. Allen, 1892-1906; A. Peter Tulp, 1907-09; E. Emerson Davis, 1910-17; George H. Donovan, 1918-22; George C. Hock, 1923-29; supplied 1929-40. Merged with North Ch. 1940. plied 1929-40. Merged with North Ch 1940.

Newark, N.J. - Third. Org 1848; became indep 1861; then Luth. Pas Francis M. Serenbetz, 1848-49; Frederick A. Lehlbach, 1850-61.

Newark, N.J. - North. Org 1856. Loc Broad and Bridge St. Pas Abraham Polhemus, 1857; Hasbrouck Du Bois, 1859-61; James Demarest, Jr., 1866-80; David L. Waters, 1881-93; Donald Sage Mackay, 1894-99; James 1900-10. Charles H. Stewart 1913-18. T I. Vance, 1900-10; Charles H. Stewart, 1913-18; T.

Ulster Casysen, Ro-

1782-

inde-2-08; edes 837-842mes son, ick, ow-

er, de-3. se

82-

C.

es 35 t, s, . s

. . .

Porter Drumm, 1919-41; Warwick F. Kelloway, 1942-44; Howard G. Hageman, 1945-. Asst pas Alexander McColl, 1895-97; Charles L. Lawrence, 1898; Lester G. Leggett, 1899-1900; Charles W. Gulick, 1901-02; Peter K. Hageman, 1903-08; Lucas Boeve, 1910-13; Samuel D. Chambers, 1914-17; William McPherson, 1918; Charles B. Condit, 1918-20; Anthony van Westenberg, 1920-24; W. O. Foster, 1924-27; Claudius J. Fingar, 1927-29; Theodore H. Thielpape, 1931-34. Assoc pas David C. Van Sickle, 1955-57; Carl W. Hiemstra, 1957-60; Robert B. Dunbar, 1962-64; Robert W. Barrowclough, 1965-.

- Newark, N.J. First German (West). Org 1866. Loc 31 Blum St. Pas John Wenisch, 1867-74; Fred Kern, 1876-82; Carl Girtanner, 1882-1918; Herbert G. Coenen, 1919-23; Frederick Steinmann, 1925-.
- Newark, N.J. South (Clinton Ave). Org 1868. Loc Clinton Ave and Halsey St. Pas William J. R. Taylor, 1869-99; Daniel Hoffman Martin, 1890-1908; Albertus T. Broek, 1908-22; Philip H. Clifford, 1922-26. Asst pas Henry M. Mellen, 1896-98; Abram Mattice, 1902-04; A. M. Arcularius, 1905-10. Merged with First Ch. 1926.
- Newark, N.J. Trinity (East). Org 1869. Loc 483
  Ferry St. Pas Isaac P. Brokaw, 1869-74; Cornelius
  Ryckman Blauvelt, 1874-77; Charles H. T. Krueger,
  1877-80; Theodore Shafer, 1882-84; D. Charles
  Preyer, 1884-86; Richard Peary Milliken, 1887-93;
  Jonathan N. Morris, 1894-1907; Charles B. Condit,
  1907-17; Francis R. Fenn, 1918-22; George H. Donovan, 1922-54; supplied by students, 1955-61; SS
  Floyd P. Swart, 1962-65.
- Newark, N.J. Christ (Woodside). Org 1872. Loc Broadway at Delavan Ave since 1880; formerly Elliott St. Pas John M. McCauley, 1874-80; William H. Brodhead, 1880-85; Charles H. Jones, 1885-94; Isaac van Wart Schenck, 1894-99; Henry Merle Mellen, 1900-12; supplied, 1913-16; pas Henry K. Post, 1917-45; Allen J. Weenink, 1946-49; E. Bert Bonte, 1949-53; James Pfingstel, 1953-57; stud supply Martin Kessler, 1958-60; pas Peter Van Es, 1963-.
- Newark, N.J. Mt. Olivet. Org 1925. Pas Domenico N. Febrile, 1925-48; Peter Scalone, 1950-51; Armando Fuoco, 1952-54. Disbanded 1955.
- Newark, N.Y. Arcadia. Org 1883. Loc 212 East Ave; formerly in East Newark. Pas William G. Baas, 1883-88; Marinus Van Doorn, 1889-93; Gerrit Dangremond, 1895-1907; S. M. Hogenboom, 1908-17; Benjamin De Young, 1918-46; John J. Fryling, 1946-58; Gordon J. Webster, 1959-.
- New Baltimore, N.Y. New Baltimore. Org 1833.

## CHURCHES

## PRESBYTERIAN.

1-1st Presbyterian, 3151 Broad st., Jonathan F. Stearns. 2-2d Presbyterian, 27 Washington et., Jos. Few Smith, Jr.

3-3d Presbyterian, (O. S.) 382! Broad, E. R. Craven. 4-4th Presbyterian, (Central), 216 Washington, C. M. Nickels.

5-5th Presbyterian, 14 West Park Street. 6-6th Presbyterian, 74 Union, W. T. Eva. 7-7th Presbyterian, 200 High, D. W. Poor.

S-Stle Presbyterian (City Mission), 218 Mulberry.

9-9th Presbyterian (Ch. pel), Perry, e. S. Market, C. P. Wilson.
10-10th Presbyterian (South Park), 190 Broad, J. P. Wilson.
11-11th Presbyterian (Roseville), J. F. Pingry.

12-12th Presbyterian (Chapel), 48 State. 13-13th Presbyterian (Chapel), Hoyt, corner Bleecker.

14-14th Presbyterian (Wickliffe Chapel) 2 Wickliffe, S. Hutch-

## CONGREGATIONAL PRESBYTERIAN.

15-1st Congregational, 15 Clinton, William B. Brown.

## UNITED PRESBYTERIAN.

16-1st United Presbyterian, 16 Clinton, David Donnan.

## REFORMED DUTCH.

17-1st Reformed Dutch, 1691 Market, Edward P. Terhune.

18-2d Reformed Dutch, McWhorter Square, G. Abeel.

19-3d Reformed Dutch (North), 115 Broad, H. Dubois.

## BAPTIST.

20-1st Baptist, 5 Academy, Henry C. Fish.

21-2d Baptist (South), 15 East Kinney, E. M. Levy.

22-3d Baptist (North), 123 Orange, R. Atkinson.

23-1th Baptist, S. Prospect c. Lafayette, D. T. Morrill.

24-1st Ebenezer Baptist, 115 Market.

25-5th Baptist, 193 Bank, C. W. Clarke.

### EPISCOPAL.

26-1st Episcopal (Trinity), 157 Broad, Edmund Neville.

27-2d Episcopal (Grace), 409 Broad, P. K. Cady.

28-3d Episcopal (Christ's), 25 North Prospect, J. N. Stansbury.

29-4th Episcopal (House of Prayer), 31 B'd, J. W. Shackelford. 30-5th Episcopal (St. Paul's), 331 High, Joseph II. Smith.

31-6th Phiscopal (St. Barnabas), Roseville, E. S. Watson.

1860 City Directory, Newart, N. J.